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PREFACE \

The information set forth in this publication is com-
piled and amended annually by the National Cancer
Institute and is intended primarily for use by mem-
bers of the institute staff, the principal advisory
groups to the Institute and others invoived in the
administration and management of the National
Cancer Program. Questions regarding any of the in-
formation contained herein may be directed to the
Financial Manager, National Cancer Institute, 9000
Rockville Pike, Bethesda, Maryland 20014.
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NATIONAL CANCER INSTITUTE HISTORICAL DATA

LEGISLATIVE HIGHLIGHTS

March 7, 1928 — Senator M.M. Neely introduced
S. 3554, “To authorize the National Academy
of Sciences to investigate the means and meth-
ods for affording Federal aid in discovering a
cure for cancer and for other purposes.”

April 12, 1937—Congressman Warren G. Magnu-
son of Washington introduced H.R. 6100, an
identical bill to S. 2067.

July 8, 1937 — A joint hearing of the Senate and
House committees was conducted before a
Subcommittee on Cancer Research, and a re-
vised bill was written.

July 23, 1937 — The National Cancer Institute Act
was passed by Congress.

August 5, 1937—The National Cancer Institute Act,
Public Law 244, 75th Congress, was signed by
President Franklin D. Roosevelt, “To provide
for, foster, and aid in coordinating research re-
lating to cancer; to establish the National Can-
cer Institute; and for other purposes.” An ap-
propriation of $700,000 for each fiscal year
was authorized.

July 1, 1944 — The Public Health Service Act, Pub-
lic Law 410, 78th Congress provided that “The
National Cancer Institute shall be a division in
the National Institutes of Health.” The act also
revised and consolidated many revisions into a
single law. The limit of $700,000 annual ap-
propriation was removed.

December 4, 1970 — Senator Ralph Yarborough,
Texas, introduced S. 4564, “A bill which would
establish a National Cancer Authority for the
purpose of devising and implementing a na-
tional program for the conquest of the world's
most dreaded disease — cancer.”

January 22, 1971 — In his State of the Union Mes-
sage, President Nixon announced that he would
ask for the appropriation of an additional $100
million to launch an intensive effort to control
cancer, and that he would ask later for what-
ever additional funds could be effectively used.

March through November 1971 — Hearings on pro-
posed legislation relating to cancer research
expansion were held by both House and Sen-
ate subcommittees,

October 18, 1971 — The President announced that
the Army's Biological Defense Research Center
at Fort Detrick, Maryland would be converted
into a leading center for cancer research as
part of the major campaign to conquer cancer.

Decemhber 7, 1971 — After three conference ses-
sions that began on November 30, the Senate-
House Conference Committee agreed on S.
1828.

December 9, 1971 — The House passed the bill by
voice vote.

December 10, 1971 — The Senate passed the bill
" 85-0 and sent it to the President for signature.

December 23, 1971 — President Nixon signed P.L.
92-218, The National Cancer Act of 1971, pro-
viding increased authorities and responsibili-
ties for the NCI Director; initiating a National
Cancer Program; establishing a three-member
President's Cancer Panel and a 23-member
National Cancer Advisory Board; establishing
cancer control programs as necessary for co-
operation with State and other health agencies;
and providing for the collection, analysis, and
dissemination of all data useful in the diag-
nosis, prevention, and treatment of cancer, in-
cluding the establishment of an international
cancer research data bank.

January-February 1974 — Hearings were held on
the proposed legislation to improve on the Na-
tional Cancer Plan and to authorize appropria-
tions for the next three years.

July 27, 1974 — The National Cancer Act Amend-
ments of 1974, P.L. 93-352, was signed. The
Amendments: encourage the NCP to explore
the role of nutrition in the treatment, rehabili-
tation, and causation of cancer; authorize the
Director to include personnel needs in the
budget estimate to OMB; remove the limit on
the number of comprehensive cancer centers;
increase the number of consultant/expert ap-
pointments to 100; and direct the NCI to pro-
vide and contract for a program to disseminate
and interpret information respecting the cause,
prevention, diagnosis and treatment of cancer.
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HISTORICAL EVENTS

August 5, 1937 — President Franklin D. Roosevelt
signed the National Cancer Act.

November 9, 1937 — The National Advisory Cancer
Council held its first meeting.

January 13, 1938 /— Dr. Carl Voegtlin was appointed
the first Director of the Institute.

October 31, 1940 — President Franklin D. Roose-
velt dedicated Building 6.

July 1, 1947 — NCI reorganized to provide for ex-
panded program; intramural cancer research,
cancer research grants, and cancer control ac-
tivities.

July 2, 1953 — NCI inaugurated a full-scale clinical
research program in the new Clinical Center.

April 1955 — The Cancer Chemotherapy National
Service Center was established in the Institute
to coordinate the first national, voluntary, co-
operative cancer chemotherapy program.

January 11, 1966 — NCI reorganized to coordinate
related activities. The areas of three Scientific
Directors were established: Etiology; Chemo-
therapy; and a group of discipline-oriented
laboratories and branches referred to as Gen-
eral Laboratories and Clinics.

February 13, 1967 — A Cancer Research Center was
established in Baltimore USPHS Hospital to
conduct an integrated program of laboratory
and clinical research on the therapy and man-
agement of cancer patients.

April 27, 1970 — At the request of Senator Raiph
W. Yarborough, Chairman of the Committee on
Labor and Public Welfare, the Senate approved
the establishment of the National Pane! of Con-
sultants on the Conquest of Cancer.

November 25, 1970 — The National Panel of Con-
sultants submitted to the Senate Committee a
report entitled “National Program for the Con-
quest of Cancer.”

October 18, 1971 — President Nixon converted the
Army’s former biological warfare facilities at
Fort Detrick, Md., to research on the causes,
treatment and prevention of cancer.

December 23, 1971 — President Nixon signed P.L.
92-218, The National Cancer Act of 1971.

June 22, 1972 — The Institute awarded a contract
for the operation and maintenance of the
Frederick Cancer Research Center at Fort
Detrick, Maryland. This constituted the largest
research contract ever awarded by a research
component of the National Institutes of Health.

June 30, 1972 — A team of five U.S. cancer scien-
tists met with Russian scientists in Moscow to
exchange information on cancer drugs. Dr. C.
Gordon Zubrod, Scientific Director for
Chemotherapy, NCI, on behalf of the United
States, signed a U.S.-U.S.S.R. agreement for
continued cooperation on the exchange of
drugs, visiting scientists, and information.

July 27, 1972 — A Bureau-level organization was
established for the National Cancer Institute,
giving the Institute and its components
organizational status commensurate with the
responsibilities bestowed on it by The National
Cancer Act of 1971. Under the reorganization,
the Institute was composed of the Office of the
Director and four Divisions: the Division of
Cancer Biology and Diagnosis; Division of Can-
cer Cause and Prevention; Division of Cancer
Treatment; and Division of Cancer Grants.

February 27, 1974 — The Division of Cancer Treat-
ment completed negotiations with the Uni-
versity of Maryland to relocate the Baltimore
Cancer Research Center within the University
of Maryland Hospital Complex in Baltimore.

September 10, 1974 — NCI established the Division
of Cancer Control and Rehabilitation, which
will plan, direct and coordinate an integrated
program of activities regarding the widespread
application of available and new methods for
reducing the incidence, morbidity and mor-
tality from cancer.



BIOGRAPHICAL SKETCHES
OF THE NCI EXECUTIVE COMMITTEE

ASSOCIATE DIRECTOR
FOR ADMINISTRATION

Calvin Benham Baldwin, Jr.

Mr. Calvin B. Baldwin, Jr. was born in Radford,
Virginia, December 22, 1925. He received his A.B.
degree from the University of North Carolina in
1949 and his M.P.A. degree from Harvard University
in 1961.

Mr. Baldwin entered the Public Health Service
in 1951 as a Methods Examiner in the Federal
Security Agency. He has served in a number of other
assignments including: Budget Examiner, NIH from
1955 to 1957; Administrative Officer, Division of
Research Services 1957-1958; Administrative
Officer 1958-1961 and then Executive Officer 1961-
1962 in the Division of General Medical Sciences;
Assistant Chief, Grants Management Branch, Divi-
sion of Research Grants 1962-1963; Executive
Officer, National Institute of Child Health and
Human Development 1963 until he was appointed
Executive Officer of the National Cancer Institute,
November 1, 1970.

CLINICAL DIRECTOR

George Peter Canellos, M.D.

Dr. George P. Canellos was born in Boston,
Massachusetts, November 1, 1934. He received his
A.B. Cum Laude (1956) degree from Harvard Col-
lege and his M.D. (1960) degree from Columbia
University College of Physicians and Surgeons. He
served as Clinical and Research Fellow 1961 to
1962 and became Assistant Resident in Medicine,
Massachusetts General Hospital in 1962.

Dr. Canellos came to the NC! in 1963 as a Clini-
cal Associate in the Medicine Branch. After his
departure in 1965 he completed his training in
medicine and hematology at the Massachusetts
General Hospital and the Hammersmith Hospital
in England before returning to the NCI as Senior
Investigator, Medicine Branch in 1967. In 1968,
Dr. Canellos served as Instructor in Medicine at the
Georgetown University Medical School. He became
Head of the Hematology Investigation Section and

Assistant Chief of the Medicine Branch in 1973.
On November 11, 1974, he was appointed Acting
Clinical Director of the National Cancer Institute.

ASSOCIATE DIRECTOR
FOR PROGRAM PLANNING
AND ANALYSIS

Louis Mario Carrese

Mr. Louis M. Carrese was born in ltaly, April 13,
1926. He received his B.A. (1951) and M.A. (1953)
Degrees from the University of Rochester and com-
pleted the Ph.D. program in 1956, lacking disserta-
tion.

Mr. Carrese obtained a position with the Freder-
ick Research Corporation in 1953 and became Vice
President for Management in 1958. From 1961 to
1962 he was Vice President for Plans and Opera-
tions of White Electromagnetics, Inc. He Joined the
NCI in 1962 as a Program Planning Officer. In 1968,
he was appointed Associate Director for Program
until 1969 when he became Associate Director for
Program Planning and Analysis.

DIRECTOR ‘
DIVISION OF CANCER TREATMENT

Vincent Theodore DeVita, Jr., M.D.

Dr. Vincent T. DeVita was born in Bronx, New
York, March 7, 1935. He received his B.S. Degree
from the College of William and Mary in 1957 and
his M.D. degree, with distinction, from George Wash-
ington University School of Medicine in 1961.

Dr. DeVita first joined the National Cancer Insti-
tute as a Clinical Associate from 1963 to 1965 and
after serving a one-year residency in medicine at the
Yale-New Haven Medical Center returned to the
Medicine Branch as a Senior Investigator. He was
selected to be Head of the Solid Tumor Service in
1968 and in 1972 was appointed Chief, Medicine
Branch, Division of Cancer Treatment. Dr. DeVita
has held an appointment as Associate Professor of
Medicine at George Washington University School
of Medicine since 1971. On September 23, 1974 he
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was appointed Director, Division of Cancer Treat-
ment.

DIRECTOR
DIVISION OF CANCER CONTROL
AND REHABILITATION

Diane Joanne Fink, M.D.

Dr. Diane J. Fink was born in Chicago, lllinois,
July 27, 1936. She received her B.S. (1957) and
M.D. (1960) degrees from Stanford University. She
trained in internal medicine from 1960 to 1966 at
the Kaiser Foundation Hospital and the Veterans
Administration Hospital in San Francisco. She held
the positions of Staff Physician, Cancer Chemo-
therapy Section (1966--1969) and Chief, Oncology
Section (1969-1971) at the V.A. Hospital. Also
during this period she was an Assistant Clinical Pro-
fessor of Medicine, University of California, and
Executive Secretary and Principal Investigator, Pa-
cific Veterans Administration Cancer Chemotherapy
Group.

Dr. Fink came to the National Cancer Institute iin
1971 as Program Director for Chemotherapy Clini-
cal Investigations Branch. In July 1973 she joined
the Cancer Control Program as Acting Chief, Treat-
ment Branch and later was made Chief of the
Branch. In April 1974 she was appointed Associate
Director for Cancer Control and with the establish-
ment of the Division of Cancer Control and Rehabili-
tation in 1974, became the Division’s first Director.

DIRECTOR
DIVISION OF CANCER RESEARCH
RESOURCES AND CENTERS

Thomas Joseph King, Ph.D.

Dr. Thomas J. King was born in New York City
June 4, 1921. He received his B.S. degree from
Fordham University in 1943 and his Ph.D. from New
York University in 1953,

Dr. King worked for 10 years as Chairman of the
Department of Embryology, Institute for Cancer Re-
search. He has served as Visiting Professor, Depart-
ment .of Zoology, University of Minnesota; Instruc-
tor in the Embryology Training Program at the Ma-
rine Biological Laboratory, Woods Hole, Mass.; and
as a Visiting Professor at Marquette University. In
1965, Dr. King was a Distinguished Lecturer at Yale
University, and in 1966 was the Damon Runyon
Lecturer at New York University. Before coming to
the National Cancer Institute, in 1972, Dr. King was
a Professor in the Department of Biology at George-
town University. He joined NCI as Program Director
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for the National Bladder and National Prostatic Can-
cer Projects. In 1973, he became Acting Associate
Director for Research Programs, and in 1974 was
named Acting Director, Division of Cancer Research
Resources and Centers, NCI.

ASSISTANT DIRECTOR

Bayard Hunter Morrison 111, M.D.

Dr. Bayard H. Morrison Il was born in Philadel-
phia, Pennsylvania, February 8, 1931. He received
his B.S. from Rollins College in 1953 and his M.D.
from Emory University School of Medicine in 1957.

Dr. Morrison joined the National Cancer institute
in 1958 and served in the Cancer Chemotherapy Na-
tional Service Center and Clinical Branch, Collabo-
rative Research, until he became the Assistant
Director, NCI iri 1965. He has served as Staff Assist-
ant, President’s Commission on Heart Disease, Can-
cer and Stroke, 1964; Member, American Cancer
Society Committee on Unproved Methods of Cancer
Treatment, 1965 to present; and Program Planning
Committee, Sixth National Cancer Conference, 1966
to 1968.

ASSOCIATE DIRECTOR
'FOR INTERNATIONAL AFFAIRS

Gregory Thomas 0'Conor, M.D.

Dr. Gregory T. O'Conor was born in Cincinnati,
Ohio, June 23, 1924, and received his M.D. degree
from Cornell University Medical College in 1948.
Following internship at New York Hospital he began
his formal training in Pathology at Cincinnati Gen-
eral Hospital.

He entered the PHS in 1950 and served as Pa-
thologist in the Division of Occupational Health until
1952 when he left the PHS to complete residency
training in Pathology at St. Francis Hospital, Hart-
ford, Connecticut. He was Assistant Pathologist at
St. Francis Hospital 1952 to 1958. From 1958 to
1960 he was Senior Lecturer in Pathology at
Makerere Medical College, Kampala, Uganda. From
1960 to 1973 he served as Supervisory Pathologist
and Head, Surgical Pathology Section, Laboratory
of Pathology, NCI. In 1966 to 1968 he was Chief of
Pathobiology Unit, International Agency for Re-
search on Cancer, Lyon, France, on assignment from
NCI. In January 1973, he was assigned the respon-
sibility to plan and establish a new Office of Interna-
tional Affairs in the Office of the Director, NCI. In
November 1973, he was recalled to active duty in
the PHS Commissioned Corps and appointed Asso-
ciate Director for International Affairs.



DIRECTOR
DIVISION OF CANCER CAUSE
AND PREVENTION

James Alexander Peters, D.V.M.

Dr. James A. Peters was born in Pensacola, Flor-
ida, October 7, 1928. He received his D.V.M. degree
from Auburn University, Auburn, Alabama in 1954,
Dr. Peters joined the National Cancer Institute in
1964 when he was commissioned in the Public
Health Service and reported for duty with the Epi-
demiology Branch in East Lansing, Michigan.

Since joining the NCI, Dr. Peters has held a vari-
ety of positions in the Carcinogenesis and Field
Studies and Statistics program areas. Prior to his
appointment as Division Director in June, 1973, he
held the following positions within the Office of the
Division Director: Assistant to the Director, Deputy
Director and Acting Director. He has also served as
a consultant to many national and international or-
ganizations,

DIRECTOR
DIVISION OF CANCER BIOLOGY
AND DIAGNOSIS

Alan Saul Rabson, M.D.

Dr. Alan S. Rabson was born in Brooklyn, New
York, July 1, 1926. He received his M.D. degree
from the Long Island College of Medicine in 1950.

He entered the Public Health Service in 1954 as
a resident in pathology at the U.S. P.H.S. Hospital
in New Orleans. Dr. Rabson came to the National
Institutes of Health Clinical Center a year later as a
resident in pathologic anatomy. From 1956 to 1970,
Dr. Rabson served as a senior investigator in the
National Cancer Institute's Laboratory of Pathology.

He became Deputy Chief of this Laboratory in 1970,
a post which he held for five years.

Dr. Rabson was appointed Director of the Division
of Cancer Biology and Diagnosis on April 1, 1975.

ASSISTANT DIRECTOR

Richard Arlen Tjalma, D.V.M.

Dr. Richard A. Tjalma was born in Holland, Michi-
gan, September 2, 1929, and received his D.V.M.
degree from Michigan State University in 1954,

He entered the Public Health Service in 1954,
and served in the Epizootiology Research Section,
NCI, from 1961 to June 1968. In July, 1969, he was
appointed Assistant to the Director, National Insti-
tute of Environmental Health Sciences.

On August 1, 1973, he returned to the National
Cancer Institute as Assistant Director.

ASSOCIATE DIRECTOR
FOR CANCER COMMUNICATIONS

J. Paul Van Nevel

Mr. J. Paul Van Nevel was born in New Richmond,
Wisconsin, April 26, 1938. He received his B.S. in
Journalism from the University of Wisconsin, Madi-
son.

Prior to joining the National Cancer Institute, Mr.
Van Nevel served as the Director for Public Rela-
tions for the Johns Hopkins Medical Institution, Bal-
timore, Maryland, and earlier as the Director of
Public Information at the University of Wisconsin
Medical Center, Madison.

Mr. Van Nevel served as the Deputy Associate Di-
rector for Cancer Communications from February
1973, until he became the Acting Associate Director
for Cancer Communications on September 30, 1974,







































































































































